Financial summary 2016—17

Summary of financial performance

For the year ended 30 June 2017, the department
reported income of $245.9 million, a decrease

from 2015-16 of $5.6 million or two per cent. This
reduction in income primarily stems from one-off
events in 2015—-16, including facilitating the Far North
Queensland Economic Summit and the Advance
Queensland Investment and Innovation Summit,

as well as reduced legal spend on state representation
at various Commissions of Inquiry. Further, the
Commonwealth also provided a contribution towards
Anzac Legacy Gallery initiatives during 2015—16.

Offsetting the decrease in revenue was additional
income received from administering the Queensland
Rail Train Crewing Practices Commission of Inquiry and
other rail link reviews during 2016—17.

A breakdown of the department’s income from
continuing operations and comparison to prior year
performance is highlighted in Figure 1.

Figure 1 — Comparison of income from
continuing operations

Expenditure trends in 2016—17 generally correlated
with the decrease in income. As highlighted in

Figure 2, the proportion of spend for each expenditure
category, when compared to total spend, has
remained consistent from the prior year.

Figure 2 - Expenditure by category
as a proportion of total spend
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Grants and subsidies

Depreciation and amortisation -
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Other expenses

2016-17 2015—-16

Appropriation revenue 204,433 208,474 (2%)
User charges and fees 39,144 34,851 12%

Grants and other contributions 260 4539 (94%)
Other revenue 2015 3600 (44%)
Total income from operations 245,852 251,464 2%)




The breakdown of each expenditure category by major Summary of financial position
departmental service and shared service providers

is highlighted in Figure 3. A major undertaking in 201617 was the
comprehensive revaluation of Arts Queensland

Figure 3 — 2016—17 Expenditure by category buildings by State Valuation Services. This revaluation

by major departmental service significantly contributed to the increase in net property,

plant and equipment holdings at 30 June 2017

by $113.8 million. The primary driver for the asset
increase was due to the buildings’ conditions

being in a better state of repair than expected at
this point in time in their respective asset lifecycle.
This resulted in the extension of the buildings’ useful
life and associated impact on adjustments to the
accumulated depreciation.
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$60M A breakdown of asset holdings and comparison

of values between years is highlighted in Figure 4.

Figure 4 — Asset holdings by category
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B Arts Queensland = land $271M  $269M
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Other $20M $om
O 2015-16 total
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Administered funding

For the year ended 30 June 2017, the department’s
administered funding totalled $154 million
($131.3 million in 2015-16).

The distribution of administered funding between
entities is highlighted in Figure 5.

The increase in administered payments when
compared to the prior year was primarily due to
providing additional funding to Queensland Museum
to develop a cutting edge interactive Science,
Technology, Engineering and Mathematics centre,
refresh exhibits, and for collection and critical asset
maintenance. Also, additional funding was provided
to the Queensland Art Gallery for Blockbuster
Exhibitions and to Queensland Family and Child
Commission for the reviews of blue card and

foster care systems.

Figure 5 — Administered funding distribution
by entity
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Chief Finance Officer Assurance

In accordance with the requirements of the Financial
Accountability Act 2009, the Chief Finance Officer
has provided the Director-General with a statement
confirming the financial internal controls of the
department are operating efficiently, effectively

and economically in conformance with section 57

of the Financial and Performance Management
Standard 2009.

The statement indicated no deficiencies or
breakdowns in internal controls, which would impact
adversely on the department’s financial governance
or financial statements for the year.
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Department of the Premier and Cabinet
Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Economic Entity Parent Entity
2017 2016 2017 2018

Notas $'000 £°000 £'000 $°000
Income from Continuing Operations
Appropriation revenue Al 204,433 208,474 204 433 208,474
User charges and fees Al-2 40,461 36,010 39,144 34,851
Grants and ather conlribulions A1-3 20,062 23,351 260 4 538
Other rewenue 2,502 3912 2,015 3,600
Total Income from Continuing Operations 267,458 271,747 245852 251,464
Expenses from Continuing Oparations
Employese expenses A2 72,963 74,821 70,859 72,793
Supplies and services A2-2 72,723 78,873 71,730 77,924
Grants and subsidies AZ-3 71,815 73,478 56,034 61,145
Depreciation and amorisation B3 & B4 35,300 33252 35,294 33247
Other expenses A2-4 11,227 6,345 11,005 G, 286
Total Expenses from Continuing Operations 263,828 266,767 245,825 251,395
Operating Result for the Year 3,630 4,380 27 &9
Other Comprehensive Income
Increase (decreass) in asset revaluation surplus B4 135,309 56,639 135,309 56,639
Tatal Other Comprehensive Income 135,309 56,638 135,309 56,634
Total Comprehensive Income 138,938 61,619 135,336 56,708

The accompanying noies form part of these statements.
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Department of the Premier and Cabinet
Statement of Financial Position

as at 30 June 2017
Ecanomic Entity Farant Entity
2017 2018 2017 2018

Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
Currant Assets
Cash and cash equivalents B 31,687 36,126 18,354 24,509
Receivables and loans recaivable B2 13,859 8,073 11,561 7277
Inventories g 22 L] 23
Prepayments 14972 1,517 1.887 1,388
Total Current Assets 47,627 45,738 .82 33,286
Non-currant Assots
Recaivables and loans receivable B2 65,517 5,235 6,431 5315
Intangible assets B3 2,469 2,937 2,469 2,937
Property, plant and equipment B4 700,643 676,755 790,631 676,730
Total Non-current Assets 799,629 684,927 799,531 E84,954
Total Assets 847,256 730,665 831,352 718,277
Current Liabilities
FPayables BS 14,164 15,297 14,008 15,088
Interast-bearing liabilities B& 4,822 1.251 4 822 1.251
Accrued emplayee benefits BY 3,236 2,917 3,147 2823
Uneamed revenue Fifd 699 G4 &og
Tatal Current Liabllitles 22 886 20,164 22,641 19,872
MNon-current Liabilities
Payables Bs 1.008 243 813 -
Interest-bearing Habllites B6 5553 5242 5,553 5.242
Accrued employee benefits a7 52 42 - -
Total Mon-current Liabilities 6,611 5,527 6,366 5,242
Total Liahilitias 29,497 25,691 29,007 25,114
Naot Assets 817,758 704,974 802,345 693,163
Equity
Contributed equity 506,648 632,802 606,548 632,802
Accumutated sumlus/deficit 19,162 15,533 3,743 3,722
Assel revaluation surplus 181,548 56,638 191,948 56,639
Total Equity B17,759 704,974 B02 345 693,163

The accompanying noles form part of these statements.



Department of the Premier and Cabinet
Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Economic Entity Parent Entity
2047 2018 2017 2016

Motes $'000 £'000 $'000 £'000
Contributed equity
Balance as at 1 July 632 802 659,907 632,802 659,207
Transactians with owners as owners.
Mppropriated equity injections BB 10,183 4 835 10,183 4 BAS
Appropriated equity withdrawals Ba& {36,337) (31,9891} {36,337} {31,951)
Balance as at 30 Juna 606,648 632,802 606,648 632,802
Accumulated Surplus
Balance as at 1 July 15,533 10,553 3,722 3,653
Opearating Resel:
Operating Resull fram Continuing Operations 3,630 4,980 27 2]
Balance as at 30 Juna 19,163 15,533 3,749 3,722
Asset Revaluation Surplus
Balance as at 1 July 58,639 - 56,638 -
Other Comprehensive Income:
Increase (decreasea) in asset revaluation
surplus B4 135,309 56 639 135,309 56,639
Balance as at 30 Juna 181,948 56,638 181,948 56,639

The accompanying noles form part of these stalements.
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Department of the Premier and Cabinet
Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 Juna 2017

Economic Entity Parent Entity
2017 201e 2017 2016

Notes 5'000 $'000 £'000 £'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Indflows:
Service appropriation recelpls Ad-1 203,184 206,019 203,184 206,018
User charges and fees 40,346 36,570 39,030 35,208
Granis and other contributions 20,062 22,844 260 4,242
Interest receipts 539 810 187 137
GST input tax credits from ATO 13,870 12,820 12437 11,828
GST collected from customers 3,738 4218 3,628 4,138
Other 2,238 2,828 2,037 2828
Outflaws:
Employms axpansos (72,801) {74,987) (70,704) {72.970)
Supplies and senices {75,004) (75,224) (74.877) {74,142}
Grants and subsidies (71,8100 (72,467} (57,125) (80,121)
Finance/borrowing cosls {187} {425) (187) (137)
GET pald to suppliers {14,602) {14,001) {13,060) (12,8000
GST remitied to ATO {3,818} {4,084 (3,703) {4,015}
Other {8,091} {1,714} {7 .B70) {1,591}
Net cash provided by operating activities CF1 36,674 42,918 33,133 38,225
Cash flows from investing activities
Inflows:
Sales of property, plant and equipment - 2 - 2
Loans and advances redeamed 1,573 2,233 1,260 2618
Ouitfiows.
Paymenis for property, plant and equipment B4 {13.412) {4,085) {13.412) (4,085)
Payments for intangibles B3 {15) [273) {15) {273)
Loans and advances made (7,096) (5,597) {5,142) {5,734)
Net cash used in investing activities {18,850) (7.720) {17,308) {7.472)
Cash flows from financing activities
inflowds.
Equity injections Ba 10,183 4 BEG 10,183 4,885
Proceeds from bomowings 5,048 57 5,142 5734
Outflows.
Equity withdrawals Ba {365,134) (31,841) {365,134) (31,841}
Baorrowing redemptions (1,260) (2.568) {1.260) (2,503)
Nat cash used in financing activities {22,163) {23,892) (22,069) {23,914)
Het Increase {decrease) In cash and cash
equivalenis {4,439) 11,206 {6,245) 8,839
Cash and cash equivalents - opening balance 35126 24,830 24,539 17,760
Cash and cash equivalents - closing balance B1 31,687 36,126 18,354 24,599

The accompanying noles form part of these statements.



Department of the Premier and Cabinet
Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 20 June 2017

CF1 Reconciliation of Operating Results to Net Cash from Operating Activities

Operating surplus/{deficit)

Mon-cash items:

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment
Impairment reversal

Revaluation decramant

Bad debts expenze

Change in assots and liabilitios

{Decrease)fincrease in deferred appropriation refundabla to
Censclidated Fund

{Increaseldecraass in lrade deblors

{Increase)decrease in other receivables
{Increase)/decrease in GST receivable
{Increase)/decrease in lang sendce leave relmbursement
recaivable

(Increase)/dacrease in annual leave reimbursement receivables
(Increase)/decrease in invenories

{Increase)/decrease in olher current assets
Increasef{decrease) in GST payable

Increasef{decrease) in payables

Increasef{decrease) in accrued employee benefils
Increasaf{decrease) in other curran labilities

Met cash from operating activities

Economic Entity Parant Entity
2M7 2016 2m7 2016
£000 $000 $'000 $'000
3,630 4,680 27 64
35,300 33282 35296 33,247
16 105 18 105
- (1) = {41)
- 1 - 1
T iz 17 15
5,960 (2.035) 5,860 (2.035)
{43) (383) (62} (320
{713) (B58) (73 {556)
(733) (533) (622) (238)
21 138 21 138
{175) 406 (175) 496
13 2 13 26
(455) {18) (508) 62
7 (1) L] (65)
{6,533) 7134 (6,441) 6,929
e ¥t 453 324 434
(35) 58 (35) 58
36,674 42,913 33,133 28,225
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Department of the Premier and Cabinet

MNotes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Section A: Notes about our Financial Performance

A1 Revenue

Al-1: Appropriation Revenue
Reconciliation of Payments from Consolidated Fund to Appropriation Revenue for Senvices Recogniged in Stalement af
Comprehensive Incame

Economic Entity Parant Entity
2017 2018 2017 2018

5000 5000 5'000 £000
Budgeted appropriation revenue 207,641 215,600 207,641 215,600
Transfer fromf{la) other headings {23300 (7,734 {2,330) {7,738)
Lapsed deparimental services appropriation {2 127) {1,843) {2,127) {1,843)
Total appropriation recaipts (cash) 203,184 206,018 203,184 206,019
Plus; Departmental Services - non-cument recaivable from the
Consdlidated Fund (Refer to Nole 52) B13 . 813 .
Plus: Opaning balance of deferred appropriation payable to
Conzolidated Fund (Refer to Nole BS) 420 2,455 420 2,455
Less: Clesing balance of deferred appropriation payable to
Consolidated Fund (Refer to Maole BS5) {6,380) (4200 {6,380 {420}
Met Appropriation Revenue 198,037 | 208,054 198,037 208,054

|

Pilus: Deferred appropriation refundable to Consolidated Fund
(expenses) (Refer to Mote A2-4) 6,336 420 6,336 420
Appropriation Revenue recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensiva Incoma 204,433 208,474 204,433 208,474

Appropriations providad under the Apprapration Act 2076 are recognised as revenue when received. Whera an appropriation recelvable
or payable has been recorded in the financial statements as at 30 June, this has been approved by Queensland Treasury.

Amounts appropriated to the depariment for transfer to ather entities in accordance with legislative or other requirements are reporied
as ‘administered” item appropriations (Refer to Section E: Notes about Administerad Activilies).

Ad-2: User Charges and Fees

Corporate senvicas partnership agreements 12,856 12,866 12,856 12,866
Facility sendces revenue 12,215 11,663 12.215 11,663
Car park revenue 8,199 7,892 8.189 7,892
Sales of goodsisenvices 4.028 610 4,028 610
Other 3,163 2,979 1.846 1,520
Total 40,461 36,010 39,144 34,851

User charges and fees controlied by the department are recegnised as revenue when the revenus has been eamed and can be
measurad reliably with a sufficient degree of cenalinty.

Sales of goodsfsenices includes fransachions of 53.64m with relatled parties.

A1-3: Granls and Other Contributlons

Contributions from Queensland Government departments 20,062 19,634 260 1,032
Commonwealth contributions = 3,717 - 3507
Total 20,062 23,354 260 4,519

Granls and other contributions revenua is recognised in the year inwhich the depariment obtains control over the grant or contribution
(control iz generally abtained at the time of receipt).

Contribulions from Queensland Government depariments are related party ransactions.
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A2 Expenses
A2-1: Employes Expanses Ecanomie Entity Parent Entity
017 2016 2017 206
000 §'000 $'000 $'000
Employee Benefits
VWages and salaries 56,342 58 427 54 526 56,581
Employer superannuation contributions 7,548 7440 T.378 T.278
Annual leave levy 5723 5,815 5,719 5,603
Long service leave levy 1,265 1,289 1,285 1.292
Tarmination benefits 206 429 208 429
Othisr employes banefits 005 1.048 853 1.042
Employee Related Expenses
Workers' compensation pramium 187 215 181 210
Onher employee related expenses BOT 348 630 288
Total 72,963 74,821 70,859 12,793
Murnber of Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) Employees 672 BE4 652 G44

Wages and salaries are recognised based on the period whene service has been received. Sick leave is non-vesting with an expense

recognised when leave is taken,

The depariment underiakes a whole of government Policy Fulures graduale program which employed 63 graduates dwwing 2016-17,
The depariment receives reimbursement of costs from other agencies (related parties) which is fully offsel against wages and salaries,

Emplover superannuation contribulions are paid to QSuper, the superannuation plan for Gueensiand Government employess, al rales

determined by tha Treasurer on advice from the State Actuary. Contribulions are expensed in the pedod in which they are paid or
payable. The depariment's cbiigation is limited to its contribution to GSuper. The QSuper scheme has defined benefit and defined
conlribution categories. The liabiily for defined benefits is hedd on a whole of government basis and reported in thosa financial

statemenls pursuant o AASE 1049 Whole of Government and General Governman! Seclor Financisl Reporting. QSuper is a related

party

Under the Queensiand Govamment's Annual Leave Ceniral Scheme and Long Senice Leave Cenlral Scheme, the levies are expensed
in ther period in which they are payable. Amounis paid to employees for annual leave and long service leave are claimed quarterly in

amears. These schemes are sdministered by Queensland Treasury which is a relaled party.
Workers” compensalion premiums are paid to WorkCover Queensland which is a related party.

FTE employees are calculated based on ihe Minimum Obligatory Human Resources Information (MOHRI) method. The reported FTEs

above includes 70 FTE emplovees that were engaged in the provision of corporate services to other agencies in 2016-17 (67 FTE

employess in 2015-16).
Hey management personnel and remuneration disclosures are datailed in Mote F2.

AZ2-Z: Supplies and Services

Building maintenance 20,808 18,283 20,808 18,203
Building services 19,660 18,308 10,312 18,071
Congultants and contractors 10,268 T.811 10,264 T.821
Infermation technology buresu services T.213 B.789 7,081 B 6B8
Professional services 4 584 13,011 4,440 12,874
Advertising and communications 4,493 4,830 4,338 4,786
Outscurced corporale support 1,435 1,616 1,435 1,515
Telephone and communications support B24 206 800 T
Travel TE7 am 846 78S
Venue hireg 361 820 351 820
Hoapitality and official functions 353 372 335 358
Ortver 1,867 2319 1,830 2145
Total :-ai?za T8,873 71,730 T7.524

Fior & tramsaclion to be classified as supplies and services, ihe value of the goods and services recaived by the depanment maust be
approximately equal to the value of the consideration exchanged for hose goods or services. Where this is not the substance of the

arrangament, the transaction is classified as grants and subsidies in Nole A2-3, Supplies and services includes transactions of

$22.077m with related paries represented by olher Queensiand Government entities, none of which are considered material other than
Depariment of Housing and Public Works for property rent amounting o $8.277m for the year ended 30 June 2017,
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A2-3: Grants and Subsidies Economic Entily Parent Entity
207 2016 2017 2016
5000 §'000 5000 £'000
Grants to private secior entilies 43 643 38,350 28,952 27,018
Grants to government entities and slatutory bodies 21,281 23,238 21,21 23,239
Grants to individuals 256 141 258 141
Total recurrent ___ 65150 62,730 50,509 50,339
Capital
Grants to government entities and stalutory bodies. 4,033 3,878 4,003 3,878
Grants to private seclor entilies = 2 - 2
Total capltal 4033 3880 4,033 3,880
Subsidy payments
Contributions 688 6,265 G8A 6265
Donations and gifls made 1,704 G601 1,704 B
Total subsidy payments N 6,866 2,392 5,866
Taotal 71,615 73,476 56,934 61,145

Grants occur when 8 paymenl of conbribution s made to an arganisation or person in return for performance of a certain objective in
compliance with certain terms and condiions and which does not directly give appresdmataly equal value in return to the depatment.

A subsidy payment is a payment or contibution made 1o an crganisation or person which is in essence, a form of financial assistance o
reduce all or part of the costs of a recipient in meeting its own objectives.

Granis and subsidies ane recognised when the oblgation fer a fransfer of resounces anises aceording fo the terms of the funding
agreement.

Grams {o private sector enlities include the Major Performing Arts Organisations Funding, Ovganisations Fund, Playing Quesnsiand
Fund, Aris Ignite and Ars Impact

Grants and subsdies includes ransactions of $14,403m with related panies represented by other Quaenskand Covernmen! antities.

Ad-d: Other Expenses

Deferred appropriation refundable 1o Consolidated Fund 6,306 420 6,346 420
Sponsorships 2,850 1,081 2776 1,081
Insurance pramiums - QGIF AZT 440 410 425
Exernal audit fees* 344 218 313 280
Interest 186 134 187 137
Losses from disposal of properdy, plant and equipment 16 105 18 105
Deferred revenue refundable 1o other enlities - 3,500 - 3,600
Special payments - ex-gratia payments - i | - 11
Other 208 356 208 338
Total 11,227 6,345 11,008 6,266

*Total audit fees quoted by the Quesnstand Audit Office (QAO) redating lo the 2018-17 financial statements was 5443, 150 (2015-16
£438, 700). This fee includes the provision of audit services to the administered entity, Ministerial Offices and Office of the Leader of the
Opposition, which has been recovered by the department. There are no non-audit senvices included In the amount.

The Cueensland Government Ingurance Fund (QGIF) is an internal Queensland Treasury managed fund to cversee the State
Government's seli-insurance scheme, Queensiand Treasury is a relaled party.
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Section B: Notes about our Financial Position

B1 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Imprest accounts
Cash at bank and on hand
Total

Far the purposes of the Statement of Financial Pasition and the Statement of Cash Flows, cash assels include all cash and chegues

Economic Entity Parent Entity
2017 2016 2017 2016
$'000 000 5000 000
34 34 33 33
31.653 36.092 18,321 24,566
31,687 36,126 18,354 24,599

receipted but not banked at 30 June 2017, as well as short-term investments redeemable within three months.
All deparimental bank accounts are grouped within the whale of government set-off arrangement with the Queensland Treasury

Corporation (QTC) and as such, do nol eam interest on surplus funds. Interest earmed on the aggregate set-off arrangement balances

accrues o the Consalidated Fund,

B2 Receivables and Loans Receivable

Currant
Trade debtors

Advances
Less: Allowance for impalimment loss
Net Advances

GST input tax credils receivable
GST payable
MNet GST receivable

Loans receivable

Annual leave rembursements

Accrued Recelvable

Long semnvice leave reimbursements

Other receivables

Total current recelvables and loans recelvable

Non-currant

Loans receivable

Approprigtion receivable

Lease incantives

Total non-current receivables and loans recelvable

All current receivables and loans receivable plus any transaclion cosis relating to loans receivable are recognised al cosl.
Settlernent of trade debtars is genarally required within 30 days from the invoice date.

Loans receivable are represented solely by the Revolving Film Finance Fund {RFFF). The RFFF provides secured loans to cash flow
film and television praductions and for infrastructure prajects that will benefit the film and television indusiry, If is administered by Screen
Cueensiand (SO) on behalfl of the Government, All furids are drawn from QTC. QTC is a related party.

Applicants apply Tor the loan through S0 and once approved, AQ recognise a loan receivable and payable (Nole BS) with interest
{charged at a book rate which is equivalent to the QTC govermment debt pool rate) passed onlo S0 This means that all costs incurred

by AQ in managing the RFFF are passed anto S0,

Man-current appropriation receivable relates a future amount owed to the department from the Consolidated Fund to offsef the non-

2,962 2,019 2,871 2,800
200 200 200 200
{200) (2000) {200) (200)
2,617 1,882 2,047 1,425
(296) (373) (279) {355)
2,321 1,508 1,768 1,070
6,544 1,498 4,822 1,251
1,008 833 1,008 833
506 564 474 564
180 201 180 201
438 549 438 549
13,959 8,073 11,561 7,277
5,639 5,162 5,563 5.242
813 o 813 L
65 73 65 73
6,517 5,235 6,431 5,315

current payable recognised for the straight-lining of leases for 1 William Street (Refer Mote BS).
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B3 Intangible Assets

Economic Entity Parent Entity
2017 216 2017 2016
$'000 000 $'000 $'000
Saoftware Internally Generated
At cost 5,689 5,807 5,689 5,507
Less: Accumulated amortisalion {3,238} (2,752) {3,235) {2 752)
Total Software Internally Generated 2,454 2,755 2,454 2,756
Software Work in Progress |
Al post 15 182 15 182
Total Software Work In Progross 15 182 15 182
Total 2,469 2,937 2,469 2,937
Intangible Assets Reconciliation
Software Internally
Generated Software WIP Total A
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 20186
§'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 £°000
Economic Entity
Carrying amount at 1 July 2,755 2,398 182 770 2,937 3,166
Acqulsitions - - 15 2ra 15 27
Transfers between classes 182 806 {182) {B0G) - ]
Impalmment reversal - T - - - 7
Transfers out to operating expense - - - (55) - (55)
Amortisation {483} (455) == = (483) {455)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2,454 2,755 | 15 182 2,463 2,937
Parent Entity
Canrying amount at 1 July 2.755 2,398 182 770 2,937 3,166
Acquisitions - - 15 273 16 273
Translers between classes 182 805 (182} (B0G) - 0
Impaiment reversal - T - - - 7
Transfers out to operaling expense - - - (55) - (55)
Amortization _(483) {455) = = (483) [453)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2,454 2,755 15 182 2,469 2,937

B3-1: Recognition and Measurement

Inangible assets with a cost or other value equal to or greater than $100,000 are recognised in the financial statemants. ltems with a
lezser value are axpensed. Any general administration, other indirect or overnead costs and training cosls are expensed as incurmed.

There is no active markel for any of the department's intangible assels, As such, infangible assels are recognised and carmied al cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Costs associated with the intemal development of computer software are capitalised and amodised under the amortisation policy
autlined in Node B3-2.
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B3-2: Amortisation Expense and Impalrment

Amaortisation Expense
Amaortisation of intangibles is performed on a straight-line basis.

Kay Judgemaent: Straighl-line amortisation is used reflacting the progressive, even consumption of future economic benefits aver the

assets useful life to the department and consalidated entity,

The residual value of intangible assets has been determined (o be zero reflecting the estimatad amount o be received on disposal at

the end of their useful life.

Key Estimate: Intangible assels are amortised on a straight-fine basis between 5-33%. The estimation of useful life and resulting
amarisation rates are based on a number of factors including the depariment’s past experience, the planned replacerment program and
expecled usage, wear and tear, obsolescence and fiscal capacity. Useful lives are reviewed on an annual basis.

Impalrmant

Intangible assels are assessed annually for impairment using a combination of external and internal impairment indicators. Inlangible
assels are principally assessed for impairment by reference to the actusl and expected continuing use of the asset by the department,

including discontinuing the use of the assel.

Ary amount by which the assel’s camying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is récorded &8s an impaimment loss. Recoverable
amount is determined as the higher of the assel’s fair value less costs to sell or depreciated replacement cost. An impaimment loss is

recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Incame.
Key Judgement: If an indicator of possible impairment exists, management determine the asset's recoverable amount.

No intangible assets were impaired at 30 Jure 2017.

B4 Property, Plant and Equipment

B4-1: Closing balances and reconciliation of carrying
amounts

Plant and Equipment

Al cost

Less: Accumulated depreciation
Total Plant and Equipment
Land

Al fair value

Total Land

Bulldings

Al fair valua

Less: Accumulated deprecialion
Taotal Buildings

Heritage and Cultural Azssets
At fair value®

Less: Accumulated depreciation’
Total Heritage and Cultural Assels
Capital works in progress

Al cost - Buildings

Total Capital works in progress

Total

1. The fair value and accumulated depraciation for Heritage and Cultural Assets (Buildings) experianced significant fluctuations in

Economic Entity Parent Entity
2017 2018 2017 2016
$'000 £'000 §'000 5'000
4,932 7420 4,838 7,335
(2, 866) {5,318) {2.774) {5,240)
2076 2111 2,064 2,085
270,600 269, 100 270,600 268,100
270,600 269,100 270,600 269,100
204,500 256,657 304,500 258,657
{116,758) {127.628) (116,753) (127.629)
187,742 129,028 187,742 129,028
640,192 733,268 640,192 733,263
{324 184) (450,467 {324, 184) {460, 467)
316,008 272 804 316,008 272,801
14,217 3715 14,247 3,715
14,217 3,715 14,217 3,15
780,643 676,755 730,621 676,733

2016-17 due to the comprehensive revaluatians undertaken and the associated extension of the remaining useful lives,
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Property, Plant and Equipment Reconciliation

H a
Plant and apial G:HI:B
Econamic Entity i Waorks in Land Buildings Tatal
Equipmant Cultural
Progress
Assels
Fair Value Level' - - Level 2 Level 3 Lovel 3
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 ___$'000 £'000
Carrying amount at 1 July 2016 2111 3,715 264,100 129,028 272,801 676,755
Acquisitions 270 13,142 - - - 13,412
Dizposals {16} - - - = (16)
Transfers between assel classes ™ (2,640) - 1.111 1,458 -
Met revaluation
incrementisidecrements) - - 1.500 665,586 56,823 135,309
Depreciation {360} - - {8,383) (25.074) {34.817)
Carrying amount at 30 June 20417 2,076 14,217 270,600 187,742 316,008 790,643
Carrying amount at 1 July 2015 3,140 691 241,700 403,245 125 648,901
Acquisitions 33 3,625 - - 477 4,085
Disposals (18] - - - (a0 {106)
Transfers between assel classes® - (601} - {£75,052) 275,653 -
Meat revaluation
Incremenisidecrements) - - 27,400 5414 19,824 56,638
Impairment reversals 34 - - - - 34
Depraciatian {1,080) - - {8570} {23,138) {32,797)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2016 211 3,715 269,100 129,028 272,801 676,755
Parant Entity
Carrying amount at 1 July 2016 2,095 3718 269,100 129,028 272,801 676,738
Acquisitions 270 13,142 - - - 13,412
Disposals (16) - - = . {18)
Transfers between assel classes 7 (2,640) - 1,111 1.458 -
MNet revaluation
Incrementsi{decrements) - - 1,500 66,986 B5,823 135,300
Depreciation (356) - - (9,383) {25,074) {34,813)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2017 2,064 14,217 270,800 187,742 316,008 790,631
Carrying amount at 1 July 2015 3118 691 241,700 403,245 125 648,880
Aequisitions 32 3,625 - - 427 4 085
Disposals (16) - - - {20} (106)
Transfers belween assel clagses? - {801} - (275,052) 275,653 2
Met revalieation
incrementai{decrements) - - 27,400 0,414 19,824 56,638
Imipairment reversals 34 - - - - 34
Depreciation : {1,075) - - (8.573) {23,138) {32,792
Carrying amount at 30 June 2016 2,085 3,715 268,100 128 028 272,801 576,739

1. Definitions of fair value levels are provided in Note B4-4,

2. As a result of the heritage listing of the Brisbanea cultural precinet an 12 Juna 2015, the decision was made to reclassify assets
impacted from Building Assets to Heritage and Cultural Buildings from 1 July 2015,
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B4-2: Recognition and Acquisition

Recognition Threshaids, ltems of property, plant and equipment with a cost or other value to or in excess of the following thresholds are
recognised for financial reporting purposes in the year of acquisition.

Asset Category Amount Asset Category Amount
Land 51 Heritage and cultural assets

Buildings $10,000 Buildings $10,000
Plant and equipment $5,000 Artwork $5.000

Iterns with a lesser value are expensed in the year of acquisition. Expenditure is only added 1o an assel’s camyng amount if it increases
the service polential or useful life to the depariment of the exisling asset. Maintenance expenditure that merely restores original service
potential (lost through ordinary wear and tear) is expensed,

B4-3: Measurament Using Historical Cost

Plant and equipment is measured al cost in accordance with the Mon-Current Assetf Policies for the Queensiand Public Sector (NCAF).
The carrying amounts for such plant and equipment is not materially different from their fair value.

EB4-4: Measuremant Using Falr Valua

Land, buildings, and heritage and cultlural assels are measured at fair value as required under the MCAP, Fair value is measured and
disclosed in the financial statements according to the following fair value hierarchy, which is based on the data and assumptions used in
the most recent specific appraisals:

Level 1 represents fair value measurements that reflect unadjusted quoted market prices In active markets for
identical assels and liabilities,

Level 2 represents fair value measuremenis that are substantially derived from inputs {other than quoted prices
included within lewvel 1) that are abservable, either directly or indirectly; and

Lewval 3 represents fair value measurements [hal are substantially derived from unobservable inpuls,

Maone of the department's assets are eligible for categarisation into level 1 of the fair value hierarchy, There were no transfers of assets
batween fair value hierarchy levels during the year. Refer ta Nate B4-1 for a reconciliation from opening balances to closing balances for
fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the fair value higrarchy.

Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment

Buildings, and heritage and cultural buildings are comprehensively revalued at least once every five years by independent professional
valuers. Land, and heritage and cultural artwork assets are comprehensively revalued annually,

The department engaged the State Valualion Service (SVS) this financial year to perform a comprehensive valuation of building and
heritzge and cultural building assats using the depreciated replacement cost (DRC) valuation method and a comprehensive market
valuation of land assets. The effective date of the valuations was 30 June 2017. SVS is registered under the Queensiand Valuers
Registration Act 1992 and are Certified Practising Valuers expenenced in valuation approaches for financial reporting 10 satisfy
AASB13.

Mr Jeeh Milani was engaged to perform a comprahansive market valuation of heritage and cultural arfwork assets. Mr Milani is an
approved valuer for the Commonwealth Cultural Gifts Scheme and is experienced in the valuation of heritage and cultural artwork.

When assels have not been comprehensively valued in the reporting period, their previous valuations are materially kept up-to-date via
the application of relevant indices. The department ensures that the application of such indices resulis in a valid estimation of the assats
fair values al reporting date. \With the exception of heritage and cultural artwork, SVS supplies the indices used for the various types of
assels. Such indices are either publicly available, or are derived from market information available to SVS. 5VS provides assurance of
their robustness, validity and appropriateness for application o the relevant assets.

The revaluation status of property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2017 ane summarnised in the following tabla:

Asset Class Land Bulldings Heritage and Cultural Assets
| Bulldings _Artwork |
Effective Revaluation Date June 2017 June 2017 June 2017 June 2017
Prior Comprehansive Revaluation May 2016 June 2012 June 2012 May 2016
Mext Scheduled Comprehensive Revaluation 2017-18 2021-22 2021-22 2017-18
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Kay Judgemant: The valuation process has baen underaken with regard to AASB13. The principal and most advantageaus market
assumption is that property sales derived from the Queensland property market are used to determing valuations, Market parficipant
assumptions are alzo made in the valuation process that market participants would not sell less thanfbuy higher than the current market
value. Highest and best use assumptions have been made on the characteristics of the assetls concemed, including restrictions on the
use and disposal of assets arising from the assel's physical nature and any applicable legislalive’contractual restrictions on use
(ineduding heritage lsting).

The cost of ltems acquired during the financial year has been judged by management of the department to materially represent their fair
value at the end of the reparting paricd.

B4-5: Depraciation Expanse and Impalrmant

Dapraciation Expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is performed on a straight-line basis. Land is nol deprecisied as it has unlimiled useful
life. Heritage and cultural assets (artwork) are not depreciated as their service potential is not expected to diminish with lime or use.
Herilage bulldings do have a service potential that could diminish aver time and are therefore depreciated accordingly. Assets under
construclion (work-In-progress) are not depreciated until they reach service delivery capacity. Service delivery capacity relates to when
construction is complete and the asset is first put to use or is installed ready for use in accordance with its intended application. These
assels are then reclassified o the relevant classes within property, plant and equipmeant,

Keay Judgemant: Straight-line depreciation is used reflecting the progressive, even consumption of fulure economic benefits over their
uzeful life to the depariment and consolidated entity.

For depreciable assets, residual value is determined o be 2ero reflecting the estimated amount o be received on disposal al the end of
their useful life.

Where assels have separately identifiable companents that are subject to regular replacement, these components are assigned useful
lives distinct from the asset to which they relate and are depreciated accordingly. Separately identifiable components only exist in the
bulldings and heritage and cultural assets (buildings) asset clasaes of the depanment.

Any expanditure that increases (he originally assessed capacily or service potential of an asset is capitalised and the new depreciable
amount is depreciated cver the remaining useful life of the asset to the depariment,

Key Estimate: For each class of depreciable asset the following depreciation rates are used;

Land BiA
Buikings 1-33%
Heritage and cultural assets
Buildings 1-33%
Artwork NIA
Plant and equiprment 5-33%

The estimation of useful life and resulting depreciation rates are based on a number of factors including the depariment's past
experience, the planned replacement program and expected usage, wear and tear, obsolescence and fiscal capacity. Useful lives are
reviewed an an annual basis,

Impairmant
Property, plant and equipment is assessed annually for impairment using a combination of external and internal impaimment indicators,

Any amount by which the assel’s carrying amount exceeds (he recoverable amount is recorded as an impairment loss, Recoverable
amaun is datermined as the higher of the assel’s fair value legs costs to sell or depreciated replacement cost. An impaiment loss is
recognised immediately In the Statement of Comprehensive Income, unless the asset is carmied al a revalued amount. When the asset
is measured at a revalued amouwnt, the impairment loss is offset against the assel revaluation surplus of the relevant class to the extent
available.

Kay Judgement: Impaiment azsessment is performed in consultation with Arts Queensland Property and Facilities Management. If an
indicator of possible impaimrment exdsts, management determine the assel’s recoverable amount.

Mo items of property, plant and equipment were impaired at 30 June 2017,
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B5 Payables

Current

Dieferred appropriation refundable to Consolidated Fund

Trade creditors and accruals

Granis and subsidies payable

Ceferred revenue refundable to other entities
Other

Total Curront Payablos

Non-Current

Other

Total Non-Current Payables

Trade credilors are recagnised upan receipt of the goods or services orderad and are measured at the purchase confract price, net of
applicable trade and other discounts, Amounis owing are unsecurad.

BE Interest-Bearing Liabilities

Interest-bearing liahilities are recognised at cost, plus any establishment expenses. All borowings by the depariment are from QTC.
QTC is a refated pary. There have been no defaulls or breaches of the loan agreements during the period. Repayment dates vary from
ane to five years. Principal and interest repaymaents were made quarterly in armears.

The fair value of interest-bearing liabilities and borrowing rates are set aut in Mote C3-4, Any borrowing costs are added to the carmying

Economic Entity Parent Entity
207 2018 2017 2018
5'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
6,380 420 6,380 420
G, 368 89.973 6212 9,715
678 B73 678 873
- 3,500 - 3,500
738 53 738 531
14,164 15,297 14,008 15,098
1.006 243 813 -
1.006 243 B13 "

amaunt of the bamawing to the extent they are not settled in the period in which they arise.

B7 Accrued Employee Benefits

Currant

Long service leave levy payable
Annual leave levy payable
Accrued salaries and wages
Total Current

Non-Current
Accrued long service leave
Total Non-Currant

The Parent Enlity's financial statements do not contain a provision for annual leave or long service leave as ihe liability is held on a
whole of government basis and reported in those financial stalements pursuant to AASE 1048 Whole of Govermment and General
Govammant Sectar Financial Reporting, The Econamic Entity includas S0 which does nol participate in whole of government central
lzave schemes. As such, the Economic Entity reflacts provisions for leave associated with SQ only.

B8 Appropriations Recognised in Equity

Budgeled equity adjustment appropriation
Lapsed equity adjustment

Unforeseen expenditure

Equity adjustmant recalpts (paymant)

Less: Opening balance of equity adjustment receivable
Less: Closing balance of equity adjustment payable
Equity adjustment recognised in Contributed Equity

388 2498 ass 298
1,552 1,598 1,463 1,505
1,205 1,020 1,285 1,020
3,236 2,017 3,147 2,823

52 42 . :
52 42 : 2

{15.217) (23.539) {15,217) (23,539)
{10.734) - (10,734) =
: (3,518) d {3,518)
{25,951) (27,055) {25,951) (27,055)
- (50) - (50)

(203) - (203) -
(26,154) (27.105) (26,154) (27,105)
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Section C: Notes about our Risks and Other Accounting Uncertainties
C1 Financial Contingencies

There are na legal actions or insurance claims that have been undertaken by or against the department at reporting date.

C2 Financial Commitments

Economic Entity Parent Entity

2017 2018 2017 2018

$°000 £000 000 000
G2-1: Non-Cancellable Operating Lease Commitments
Mot later than ong year 5,201 212 4,993 -
Later than one year and nod later than five years 22 004 510 21,782 =
Later than five years 65143 - 65,183 .
Total Non-Cancellable Operating Leases 92,488 722 91,968 -
C2-2: Capital Expenditure Commitments
Mot later than one year 2450 - 2,450 -
Later than one year and not later than five years - - - =
Total Capital Expenditure Commitments 2,450 - 2,450 -

In preparation of the 2016-17 financial statements, the department identified amounts disclosed as capital expenditure commitments in
the 2015-16 financial staternents that were capital maintenance (operating expenditure) commiimeants. Comparafive numbers réporied
in the 2015-16 financial statements have been restaled above to comect these ermors for both the consalidated entity and the
depariment.

C3 Financial Risk Disclosures

£3-1: Financial Instrument Categories

Financial assels and financial Babilitles are recognised in the Stalement of Financlal Pesition when the depariment becomes party ta
the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. Mo financial assets and financial liabilities have been offset and presented net in
ihe Statement of Financial Position. The department has the following categaories of financial assets and financial liabilties;

Financlal Assats MNotes

Cash and cash equivalents B1 31,687 36,126 18,354 24,509
Receivables and loans receivable B2 20,476 13,308 17,982 12 592
Total Financlal Assets 52,163 49,434 36,346 a7 181

Financial Liabilities

Payables BS 15,170 15,540 14,821 15,089
Interest-baaring liabilities - ATC borrowings 10,375 5,493 10,375 6,493
Total Financial Liabilities 25,545 22,033 25,196 21,592

C23-2: Financial Risk Managemeont

Financial risk management is implernented pursuant to gowernment and deparimental palicy. These policies lfocus on the
unprediciability of financial markets and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the depariment.

The department measures risk expasure using a variety of methods as follows:

Risk Exposure Measurement Meathod
Cridit risk Agelng analysis, eamings at risk
Ligiadily risk Sensilivily anahysis

| Marketrisk Interest rate sensiivily analysis

The depariment has no materal iquidity or market risks. The department has credit risk expasure through the REFF loan facilily.
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If a default on a film assistance loan occurs there is potential for the loan to became non-recoverable to SQ. There is minimal credit
risk exposure for all other financial assels. The maximum exposure o credit risk at balance date in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the gross carnying amount of those assets inclusive of provisions for impaiment.

This credit risk is mitigated through the use of a credit managemenl sirategy. The slrategy invalves the S0 board appraving all new
loan arrangements afier a comprehensive application process and an on-going monitoring process. All loan amangements are on @
secured, fixed term, interest baaring basis. The security is a fived and floating charge ower tha assets of tha borrower held by S0

C3-3: Financial Assats

The collectability of receivables is assessed periodically with provigion being made where receivables are impaired. No financial assats
have had their terms renegotiated 50 as to prevent them from being past due or impaired, and are stated at the carmying amouwnts.
Ageing of past due but not impaired receivables are disclosed in the following table:

2017 Financial Assets Past Due but Not Impaired

Ecenomic Entity Parent Entity
Ovardug Ovardus

Less Maore Lass Maore

than than than than

30 20-60 61-30 90 10 30-60  B1-90 a0
Days Days Days Days. Total Days Days Days Days Total
$'000 §'000 $'000 $'000 £'000 $000 5000 §'000 5000 £'000
2017 1,316 40 23 &0 1,489 1,316 90 23 45 1,474
20186 &30 340 34 40 1.294 880 340 34 I 1.2

C3-4: Fair Value

All financial assats and liabilities are measurad at cost. The fair value of borrowings is notified by QTC and is calculated using a
weighted average rate. For the year ended 30 June 2017, the weighled average borrowing rate was 2.54%, ranging from 1.88% to
3.09%.

Economic Entity Parent Entity
2017 2016 2017 2016
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount  Value Amount  Value Amount  Value Amount  Value
§'000 $000 $000 000 $'000 $'000 000 $'000

Financial Assets
Loans receivable 12,183 12,183 6,660 6,660 10,375 10,434 6,493 6,647
Total 12,183 12,183 6,660 6,660 10,375 10,434 6,493 6,647
Financial Liabilities
Interest-bearing
liabilities 10,375 10,434 6,493 G647 10,375 10434 6,483 G, G47
Total 10,376 10,434 6,493 6,647 10,375 10,434 6,493 6,647

Refer to note B2 with respect to existing loan arangements between AQ and S0,

Loans receivable are non-derivative financal assels with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and
are subsequently measured al amortised cost.

C4 Events Occurring after Balance Date

There are no matters of significance o the financial stalemenis which occurred afier 30 June 2017,
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Section D: Notes about our Performance compared fo Budget

D1 Budget to Actual Comparison - Statement of Comprehensive Income

Budget Actual Variance
Varianco 2017 2017 2017
Notes £°000 000 $'004
Income from Continuing Operations
Appropriation revenus 207,641 204,433 {3,208)
Lizer charges and fees 1 5,527 39,144 3,617
Grants and other confrbufions 357 260 am
Other revanie 2 324 2015 1,801
Total Income from Continuing Operations 243,848 245,852 2,003
Expenses from Continuing Operations
Employee expenses 72648 70,858 {1,790)
Supplies and senvices 70,401 71,730 1,329
Grants and subsidies ] 64,473 58,934 {7,539)
Depreciation and amarlisation 33450 35,206 1.546
Other expenses 4 2876 11,006 8,130
Total Expenses from Continuing Operations 243,849 245,825 1,976
Operating Result for the Year - 27 27
Other Comprehensive Income
Increase (decrease) in assel revaluation surplus 5 23,637 135,304 111,672
Total Other Comprahensive Income 23,637 135,308 111,872
Total Comprehensive Income 23,637 135,336 111,699

1. Aclual user charges and fees were higher than budget primarily due to cost recovery agreements with state government entities for
the Queensland Rail frain crewing practices Commission of Inquiry and rall link projects (33.17m), as well as additional facilities
management revenue collected from tenants al the Brisbane culture precinct to offset increased costs (30.87m). This increase has been
partly offset by less than expected revenue collected from Southbank camparks ($0.20m). These items represents 53.64m of the
variance, with a further $0.43m of offsets nat material enough lo be indlvidually prasamted.

2, Actual other revenus was higher than budget primarily due to the recognition of in-kind suppon associated with archive storage
{$0.51m) and staff suppart from other depariments assisting with the Queensland Rail frain crewing practices Commission af Inguiry,
Cueensland Parole System Review and Morth West Minerals Province Taskforce (80.27m), The increase is also due to additional
sponsarship received for state run events ($0.70m) and sale aof assals as a resull of the relocation to 1 William Streat (30.11m}. These
items represents $1.59m of the variance.

3. Actual grants and subsidies were less than budgel primarily due 1o the reallecation of costs towards reducing youth crime in
Townsville iniliatives within the Department of Justice and Attarney-General {$1.70m), undertaking reviews of blue card and foster care
syalems at the Queensland Family and Child Commissian (QFCC) ($1.12m), as well as an intfermal reallocation to meet expenditure
associated with the Queensland Parole Sysiemn Review ($0.58m). The decrease is also due to costs assotiated wilh arts infrastiuclure
uparades (31.75m) and delivering community-driven activities to build social cohesion ($1.62m) postpaned until 2017-18. These items
represent 56.77m of the variance,

4, Actual other expenses were highar than budget primarily due to the recognition of excess 2016-17 appropriation owed to the
Cansolidated Fund ($6.40m), as well as addltional sponsorship payments made during the year for Myriad Group activities, \Wodld of
Crones Congress, While Ribbon Day Breakfast and Maroon Fesfival ($1.53m). These items represent $7.93m of the variance, with
$0.3%m of offsets not material enaugh to be individually presanted.

&, Actual other comprehensive income was higher than budget due Lo the outcome of undertaking a comprehensive revaluation of Ars
Queensland buildings and heritage assets. This represents the varance,
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D2 Budget to Actual Comparison — Statement of Financial Position

Currant Assaets

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables and loans receivable
Inventories

Prepayments

Tatal Current Assats

Non-current Assels
Receivables and loans receivable
Intangible assets

Property. plant and equipment
Total Man-current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities
Payables

Interest-bearing liabiliias
Accrued employee benefits
Unearned revenue

Total Current Liabilities

Mon-currant Liabilities
Payables

Interest-bearing liabilities
Total Mon-currant Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Mat Assats

Equity
Tatal Equity

6. Actual cash and cash equivalents were higher than budget primarily due to recognition of excess 2018-17 appropriation owed to the
Consolidated Fund at year end ($6.38m), as well as higher than anticipated balances associated with Anzac Centenary commemoration
grants ($0.66m) and reducing Domestic and Family Viclence activities ($0.63m). This increase has been partly offset by higher than
expected Goads and Services Tax (GST) receivable al vear end ($2.45m). This represent §5.22m of the variance, with a further $0.28m
of offsets not material enough to be individually presented.

7. Adclual current receivables and loans receivable were greater than budget due to new loans from the RFFF, as well as associated
transfars batween current and non-current eategories (53.52m). The increase is also due lo higher than expected GST receivabla at

Variance
Notes

10
11

12
13
14

15

year end (32.45m). This represents $5.97m of the variance.

8. Actual prepayments were greater than budget primarily due 1o an increase in contraciually required upfront payments made by

Budget Actual Variance
207 27 a7
$°000 000 §'000
13,414 18,354 4,840
5,542 11,561 6,019
2 g (14)
1,721 1,857 176
20,700 31,821 11,121
5,389 G431 1,032
2,756 2,469 (287)
652,922 780,631 137,708
661,077 799,631 138,454
681,777 831,352 149,575
5,059 14,008 8,049
1,300 4,822 3,522
2,748 3147 389
640 864 24
10,647 22,641 11,994
- 813 813
5,389 5,553 154
5388 6,366 967 _
16,046 29,007 12,964
665,731 802,345 136,614
665,731 802,345 136,614

Corporate Adminisiration Agency (CAA) to infarmaltion technology providers ($0,30m). This increase was parily offset by the

realignment of the telespresence videa sysiem confract to financial years therefore, na longer being prepaid ($0.18m). This represents

50.12m of the variance.

4. Actual non-current receivables and loans receivable, and non-current payables wera higher han budget primarily due to adopting the

straight-line leasing accounting methodology on 1 Willlam Street rental agreements. This represents $0.81m of the varianca.

10. Actual intangibles were lower than budget due fo delaying the implamentation of a new Joiners, Leavers and Maovers system until
2017-18 (30.40m) and the expensing af the ServiceMow software thal was originally planned to be capitalised ($0.06m). This decrease
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has been panly offset by additional costs associated with implementing the elegislation system ($0.15m) and commencement of
upgrading the whale of govemment Performance Information Management Systemn (80.02m). This represents the variance.

11. Actual property, plant and equipmenl was higher than budget primarily due lo a comprehensive land, bullding and heritage assets
revaluation during the year ($147.33m). The Increase has been partty offset by the deferral of capital work on the Anzac Legacy Gallery
{$7.22m), critical infrastructure at the Brisbane cultural precinet {$1.10m) and the Cremorme Theatre upgrade {$1.41m) until 2017-18.
This represents $137.60m of the variance.

12. Actual current payables were higher than budget primarily due (o the recognition of excess 2018-17 appropriation owed o the
Consolidated Fund at year end ($5.38m), as well as higher than anlicipated balances associated with Anzac Centenary commemoration
grants ($0.66m) and reducing Domestic and Family Violence activities ($0.63m). This represents $7.67m of the variance.

13, Actual current interest-bearing liabilitles were greater than budget primarily due o new lnans not initially forecasted for the RFFF
and associated transfers between cument and non-current categories. This represents the variance,

14, Actual accrued employee expendifure was higher than budget due to salary and wages ($0.25m) and annual leave levies owed to
QSuper (50.14m) at year and were higher than initially forecast. This represents the variance.

15. Actual total equity was higher than budget primarily due to the outcome of a comprehensive land, building and heritage assets
revaluation during the year ($145,78m). The increase has been parily offsel by the deferral of funding provided for the Anzac Legacy
Gallery ($7.00m), critical infrasiructure af the Brisbane cultural pracinct (51.10m) and a new Joiners, Leavers and Movers system
{$0.36m) until 2017-18. This represents $137.32m of the variance.
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D3 Budget to Actual Comparison — Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities
Infiows:

Senvice appropriation receipls
User charges and fees.

Grants and other contributions
Interest receipts

GET input tax credits from ATO
GST collected from customers
Other

Ouitfiows:

Employes expenses

Supplies and services

Grantg and subsidies
Financa/borrowing costs

GST paid to suppliers

GST remilted (o ATO

Other

MNat cash provided by aparating activities

Cash flows frem investing activities
inflows:

Recelpls from loans

Cutfiows.

Payments for property, plant and equpment
Paymenis for intangibles

Paymenis for loans

Met cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Indfows:

Equity injections

Borrowings

Outflows:

Equity withdrawals

Bomrowing redemptions.

HNet cash used in financing activities

Met increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year

16, Actual user charges and fees were higher than budget primarily due to cost recovery agreemenis with state govermment entities for
the Queensland Rail train crewing practices Commission of Inguiry and rail link projects (£3.17m) a5 well as additional facilities
management revenua collected from tenants at the Brisbane culture precinet to offset increased costs ($0.67m). This increase has been
parily offset by less than expected revenue collecled at Southbank carparks ($0.20m). These items represent $3.64m of the variance,

Variance
Notes

16

17
18
18
18

17
18
18
3|

22

23
24
22

25
22

25
22

Budget Actual Variance
2017 2017 207
£'000 £'000 £'000
207 641 203,184 {4,457)
35,516 39,030 3.514
357 260 (87)

- 187 187

5,524 12,437 6,913
2,103 3,628 1,525
132 2037 1,905
(72,479) (70,704) {1,775)
{70,188) (74.977) 4 788
(64,473) (57.129) (7, 344)
- {187) 187
{7.4490) (13,060) 5,570
(244) (3,703) 3,459
(2.684) (7.870) 5,186
33,714 33133 (581)
138 1,260 1122
{18,651) {13,412) (5,239)
{400) (15) (385)
{341) (5,142) 4 601
(19,254} {17,309) {1,945)
17,576 10,183 {7,303)
341 5,142 4 801
{32,783) (36,134) 3,341
{138) {1,260) 1,122
—(15014) (22,069) 7,055
(554) (6,245) 5,691
13,968 24,599 10,631
13,414 18,354 4,940

with a further $0.13m of offseis not material enough to be individually presented.

17. Actual interest receipts and finance/borrowing costs were higher than budget due fo interest eamed and paid with increased loans
associaled with the RFFF. This represents the varance.

18. The department is working to eslablish besl practice in GST budgeling, including the adoplion of a four-line approach (rather than
net) ta record and classify budgeted activities as GST generating transaclions. As a consequence, actual GST transactions were

greater than the allowance provided for under the current budget methodology.

14. Actual other operating inflows were higher than budget due to receipt of unbudgeted sundry receivables recorded at the end of

2015-16 ($1.00m), as well as sponsorship received for state run events ($0.70m). This represents $1,70m of the variance.
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20, Actual grants and subsidies were lass than budget primarily due to the reallocation of costs towards reducing youth crime in
Townsville intiatives within the Department of Justice and Attorney-General ($1.70m), undertaking reviews of blue card and foster care
systems af the QFCC ($1.12m), as well as an internal reallocation to meet expenditure associaled with the Queensland Parcle Syslem
Review (30.58m). The decrease is also due to costs associated with arts infrastructure upgrades ($1.75m) and delivering community-
driven aclivities to build social cohesion (31.62m) postponed until 2017-18. These items represent $6.77m of the variance.

21. Actual ather aparating outflows were greater than budget primarily due to the return of unrequired cash received in 2015-16 far
Anzac legacy projects to the Department of Velaran Affairs in 2016-17 ($3.50m), The increase is also due to sponsorship payments
during the year for Myriad Group aclivities, World of Drones Congress, White Ribbon Day Breakfast and Maraon Festival ($1.53m).
These items represent $5,03m of the variance,

22. Actual receipts from loans, payments for loans, borrowings and borrowing redemptions are higher than budget due to the relatively
uncertain nature of activities associated with the RFFF al the time of budget formation.

23, Actual payments for property, plant and equipment were lower than budget primarily due to deferral of capital work on the Anzac
Legacy Gallery ($7.22m). This decrease has been partly offset by additional spend on the Cremorme Theatre upgrade ($1.80m) and
tenancy works at the Judith Wright Centre of Contemporary Arts, including relocating the Aboriginal Gentre for the Parforming Arts
{$0.19m). This represents $5.43m of the variance, with $0.19m of affsets not matarial anough to be individually presanted.

24, Actual payments for intangibles were lower than budget due (o delaying the implementation of a new Jainers, Leavers and Mavers
system until 2017-18 ($0.40m). This decrease has been parly offset by additional costs associated with the commencement of
upgrading the whole of government Performance Information Management System ($0.02m). This represents the variance.

25, Actual equity injections were lower than budget due to deferred Anzac Legacy Gallery capilal expenditure ($6.29m) and capital
infrastructure works program at the Brisbane cultural precinct (§1.10m) into 2017-18, This represents the variance,

26, Actual equity withdrawals were more than budget psimarily due to the return of additional cash to the Consolidated Fund associated
with funding increased depreciation expense (non-cash) that arose from asset revaluations ($1.88m). The increase is also due o equity
to output transfers for Anzac Centenary commemaration activities and information and communication technology system upgrades
($1.30m), as well as deferal of funds for implamentation of a new Joiners, Leavers and Mowers system into 2017-18 (§0.36m). This
represants $3.54m of the variance, with 50.20m of offsets not material enough Lo be individeally presented.
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Section E: Notes about our Administered Activities

E1 Schedule of Administered Income, Expenses, Assets and Liabilities

E1-1: 2016-17 Financial Information

Ministerial
Offices and Cueensland
Office of the Farmer Family and
Leader of the Governor's Child Arts Total
Opposition Panslon Commission Queansland  Administered
£'000 $°000 5000 £'000 £'000
Administered Revenues
Appropriation revenue (Note E1-4) 41,100 150 13,459 98,688 153,437
Other revenue 177 - 342 - 5149
Total Administered Revenues 41,277 150 13,841 948,688 153,956
Administered Expensas
Employee expenses 24,744 127 - - 24 871
Supplies and services 16,248 - - 16,249
Grants and subsidies {Note E1-3) - 13.310 98,688 111,998
Depreciation and amaorisation 157 - - 157
Other expenses 127 - 342 - 465
Total Administared Expenses 41,277 127 13,652 98,688 153,744
Operating Surplusi({Deficit) - 23 189 - 212
Administered Assats
Current
Cash and cash equivalents 6,920 120 189 - 7,22
Receivables 618 = 342 - 960
Other current assels 28 - - 28
Total Current Assots 7,564 120 51 - 8,215
Mon-current
Recevables 994 - - - 994
Prepery, plant and
equipmentintangibles 1,304 - - = 1,304
Total Non-current Assets 2,298 - - - 2,298
Total Assets 8,862 120 531 - 10,513
Administered Liabilities
Current
FPayables 2,003 - 342 2,345
Accrued employee benefifs 1,347 - - - 1,347
Total Current Liabilities 3,350 - 342 - 3,892
MNan-current
Payables 594 - - - o044
Accrued employee benefits 688 - - - 688
Taotal Hon-currant Liabilities 1,682 - - - 1,682
Total Liabilities 5,032 - 342 - 5,374
Mot Administerad Assots 4,830 120 189 - 5,129
Total Administarod Equity 4,830 120 189 - 5139
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E1-2: 2015-18 Financial Information

Ministerial
Offices and Queensland
Office of the Farmer Family and
Leader of the Govermnor's Child Arts Total
Opposition Pansion Commission Queensland  Administered
5'000 $'000 5000 $'000 5000
Administered Revenuas
Appropriation revenue 35211 150 11,568 84,152 131,082
Cither revanmuse L - 189 - 220
Total Administered Revenues 35,242 150 11,758  B4,152 131,302
Administered Expenses
Employes expanseas 23,556 130 - - 23,686
Supplies and senvices 11,304 - = - 11,304
Grants and subsidies (Mole: E1-3) - - 11,569 B4, 152 45,721
Depreciation and amaortisation 227 - - - 227
Othar expenses 163 - 189 - 352
Total Administered Expenses 35,250 130 11,758 B4,152 134,280
Oparating Surplus!{Deficit) (8} 20 - - 12
Administered Assets
Current
Cash and cash equivalents A, 921 SR - - 4019
Recaivables 517 - 188 - 706
Other cuament assets 27 - - - 27
Total Current Assals 8,485 98 189 - 9,752
Non-current
Property, plant and
equipmentintangibles as6 - - 350
Total Non-current Assets 359 - - - 359
Total Assets 5,824 98 189 - 10,111
Administered Liabilities
Current
Payables 961 - 188 - 1,160
Accrued employee benafits 1.033 - - - 1.033
Total Current Liabllities _ 1,984 - 183 - 2,182
Non-current
Accrued employvee benefits 3,000 - - - 3,000
Total Non-current Liabilities 3,000 - - - 3,000
Total Liabilities 4,984 - 189 = 5183
Net Administerad Assats 4,830 98 - - 4,928
Total Administered Equity 4,830 ] - . 4,928
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E1-3: Granis and subsldies ware paid to the following entities

Gueensland Family and Child Commission
Cueensland Ar Gallery

Queensland Museum

Cueensiand Perfarming Art Trust
Queeansland Theatra

Screen Cueensland

Total Grants and subsides

E1-4: Reconciliation of Payments from Consolidated Fund to Administered Revenus

Budgeled appropriation

Transfers from/{ta) other headings

Total Administered Receipts

Less: Opening balance of departmental senices revenue recalvable
Less: Closing balance of uneamed departmental services revenue

Not Administered Appropriation Revenua

Plus: Deferred appropriation refundable to Consolidated Fund (expenses)

Appropriation Revenue recognisad in the Statemeant of Comprahansiva Incoma

2047 2016
$000 $'000
13,310 11.569
32,173 28,530
36,116 24,080
7.997 9,330
2,600 2,600
19,802 18,602
111,988 85,721
150,956 126,420
2,330 7,738
153,288 134,158
& (3,076)

(190] (189)
153,096 130,893
341 189
153,437 131,082

E1-5: Significant Accounting Palicy

Refevant significant accounting policles for Administered activitles anz in ling with these stated under the Reporting Entity's notes 1o the

Financial Statements.
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E2 Budget to Actual Comparison — Administered Activities

E2-1: Income and Expenses

Budgat Actual Varlance
Varlance 2017 2017 2017
Motas $'o0a $'o00 $'000
Administered Revenues
Appropriation revenue 150,956 153,437 2,481
Ofher revenue 1 - 4§18 = 518
Total Administered Revenuas 150,956 153,956 3,000
Administored Expanses
Employes expenses 2 29,592 24,871 {4.721)
Supplies and services 15,568 16,248 &ao
Grants and subsidies a 104, 026 111.998 68,872
Depredalion and amortisation 4 BB 157 (483)
Other expenses 5 123 469 346
Total Administered Expenses 150,956 153,744 2,788
Operating SurplusiDaficit) - 212 212

Variance Motes — Administered Activities (Income and Expenses)

1. Actual other revenue was higher than budgel primarily due fo the retun of grant payments made to the OFCC {o undertake the Child
Death Model Review (50.12m), the three year evaluation of the child protection reform pragram (50.10m), systems reviews ($0.07m),
the Hearing our Voices project ($0.03m) and the community education wark package (50.02m) post budget formation. Thesa programs
of work will continue ta progress in 2017-18. In addition, the increase alzo relates to Ministerlal Offices and Office of the Leader of the
Opposition's recovery of cosis from Queensland Treasury Tor the replacement of compatible information technology equipment at 1
William Street (30.14m) and subsequent sale of incompatible assels used at 100 George Streal (80.02m). These ilems represent
$0.50m of the vanance.

2, Actual employee expenses were lower than budget primarily due to temporary savings generated within ministeral offices from
unanticipated vacancies arising oul of particlio reshuffles during the financial year, This represents the variance.

3, Actual grants and subsidies wera higher than budget pimarily doe (o additional appropriation provided to Queensland Museum to
develop a cutting edge interactive Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics (STEM) cenfre (35.00m) and for preservation af
the state collection ($0.85m), as well as to the QFCC for the reviews of blue card and foster care systems ($1.12m). These items
represent the variance,

4, Aclual depreciation and amorlization was lower than budgel primarily due to ministerial offices not replacing aged asseéts unltil late in
the financial year as a result of relocating to 1 William Street. This represents the variance.

5, Actual other axpenses wera higher than budget primarily due to adminisiered appropriation payable (o the Consolidated Fund
associated with QFCC's Child Death Model Review ($0.12m), the three year evaluation of the child protection reform program ($0,10m},
gyslems reviews (30.07m), the Hearing our Voices project ($0.03m) and the community education work package ($0.02m). This
represems the variance,
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E2-2: Assets and Liabilities

Budget Actual Variance
Variance 2017 2017 2017
Notes 5'000 $'000 $'000
Administered Assels
Currant
Cash and cash eguivalents i 11,513 T.229 (4,284)
Receivables T 414 260 546
Other current assets 23 26 3
Total Current Assets 11,950 8,215 {3,735)
Nan-current
Receivablas & - 204 %04
Property, plant and equipment 8 1,162 1,304 142
Total Non-currant Assats 1,162 2,208 1,136
Total Assels 13,112 10,513 {2,598)
Administered Liabilities
Currant
Payables 10 o802 2,345 1,443
Accrued employee benefits 1 2212 1,347 (BBS5)
Tatal Current Liabilities 3,114 3,682 578
Non-current
Payables & - 904 204
Accnsed employee benefils i1 5,081 588 {4,393)
Total Non-current Liabilities 5,081 1,682 {3,399)
Total Liabilities 8,185 5374  (2821)
Net Administered Assets 4,917 5,138 222
Total Administered Equity 4,917 5138 222

Variance Noles — Administerad Activities (Assels and Liabilities)
6. Actual cash and cash equivalents were lower than budgel due o movernents in cash balances held to fund severance provisions for

Ministerial Offices and Office of the Leader of the Opposilion following resignations of employess with high years of recegnized senice.

These Hems represent $5.26m of the varance, with 50.98m of offsels not material enough 1o be individually presented.

7. Actual receivables were higher than budget primarily due lo unspent grant funding 1o be returned from QF CC associated with
undertaking the Child Death Model Review ($0.12m), the three year evaluation of the child protection reform program ($0.10m),
systems reviews ($0.07m), tha Hearing our Vaices project (30.03m) and the community education work package (50.02m). In addition,
the increase is alzo due to a higher than expected GST receivable for ministerial offices as a result of a large technology purchase al
wear end ($0.13m). These items represent 30.47m of the variance.

8. Actual non-currant recaivables and non-curfent payablas wera higher than budget primarily due o adopling the stralght-ling kzasing
accounting methodology on 1 Willilam Street remal agreements. This represenis the variance.

4. Actual property, plant and equipment were higher than budgeat due to asset acquisitions at the end of the financial year to support
minkstertal offices located in 1 Williamsa Strest resulling in lower deprediation expense for the year. This represents the variance.

10, Actual current payables were higher than budgel primarily due to appropriation (o be retumead o the Consolidated Fund associated
with QFCC's Child Death Model Review ($0.12m), the threa year evaluation of the child protection reform program ($0.10m), systems
reviews ($0.07m), the Hearing our Voloaes project (30.03m) and the communily education work package ($0.02m). In addition, the
Inerease is also afiributable to ministerial offices technology purchases at year end ($0.70m} and Fringe Benefit Tax payable {$0.30m).
These items represent $1.34m of the variance.

11. Actual eurrent and non-curment accrusd employes benefits ware lower than budget primarily due 1o movements in the severance
provisions for Ministerial Offices and Office of the Leader of the Opposition as a resull of resignations of employees with high years of
recognised service. This represents the vanance.
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Section F: Other Informalion

F1 Objectives and Principal Activities of the Department

As the lead central agency of the Queensland public service, the Depariment of the Premier and Cabinet services the Premier and
Cabinet, building confidence in and driving an innovative govermnment, while providing whole of government leadership to deliver
ouistanding resulls and value for maney for CQueenslanders,

The department's vision is that it makes a real and langible difference loday, and our contributions will be recognised by future
generations.

To achieve this vision, the department's sirategic objectives are to:

Support the Premier to sel the strategic direction of government.
Lead the development, coordination and implementation of effective and innovative policy sclutions,
Maintain a robust gystem of government with disciplined Cabinet and Executive Council systems and processes.

Lead Queensland's engagement with the Council of Australian Governments (COAG) and other whole of government
interjurizdictional activities.

Lead planning and delivery of whole of government communication,
Provide strategic advice and coordination of the Premier's official overseas visits and functions.
Deliver the legislative program for Queensiand,

Support Queenslanders” access to ars and cultural experiences lo enable growth of the arts sector and a strong community of
arts.

The depariment is committed fo supporting the delivery of the Queensland Govenment’s objectives for the community. This is achieve
thraugh collaboration across the whale of government ta achieve policy outcomes that support these aobjectives.

The major senvices dellvered by the department” are as follows:

Palicy Advice and Coordination, and Cabingt Support: provision of detailed briafings to the Premier on social, legal, economic,
environmental and performance palicy, from design and development through to coordination and implementation. It also includes
the management and coordination of all procedural, operational and logistical senvices supporting Cabinet and Cabinat
Committees, including custodianship of Cabinet records from current and previous governments.

Government Services: provision of policy and operational adwice and support 1o the Premier in relation to constitutional, execulive
govermment and machinery-of-government matters. it also includes supporting the administration of business before Executive
Council, provision of support senvices to Ministerial Offices and the Leader of the Opposition, and management and coordination of
the Anzac Cenlenary commemorative program.

Legislative Drafting and ePublishing: provision of legislative drafting services to all Queensland public sector agencies and
provision of access to legislation on the Queensland legislation website.

Arls Queensland: management of investment programs that support individual artists and arts and cultural arganisations; support
of capital infrastructure thal provides public spaces for arls production and engagement; and provision of arts and cultural policy
and strategy advice to the Queensland Government.

Corporate Administration Agency (CAA): provision of corporate services to Queensland public sector entities, principally statutory
bodies. Includes human resource (HR) managemant and HR consulting, payroll and recruitment senvices, financial management
and ransactional senvicas, and information technology and business systems.

Administared items
Administered activilies are those undertaken by depariments an behalf of the Governmeni.

The Department of the Premier and Cabinet administers funds on behalf of the State which includes resourcing for Ministerial Offices
and Office of the Leader of the Oppositian.

The key clients are Ministers, Assistant Ministers, the Leader of the Opposition and their respective staff, The services provided ara:

-

support for Ministers to assist in undertaking their responsibilities as Ministers of the State
management of advisory, secrelanal and administralive slaff and assoclated resources for all Ministenal Offices

rairlanancs of proceduras Lo ansure tha financial acesuntabilty of these officas i In accordance with the Gueensland Ministerial
Handbook

corporate support for the Office of tha Laadar of the Oppositicn.

The department also administers funds on behalf of the State for the following statutory entities; Queensland Family and Child
Commission, Cueensland Art Gallery, Queensland Museun, Queensiand Perfarming Arts Trust, Queensland Theatre and Screen

Cueensland,

*Major services delivered by the department do not align to structural divisions. Strategy and Engagement is distributed between Palicy
Advice and Coordination, and Cahinet Supparl, and Governmeant Services.
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F2 Key Management Personnel (KMP)

F2-1: Details of Key Management Personnel

For 2016-17, the depariment's responsible Minister is identified as part of the depardment’s KMP, consistent with additional guidance
included in the revised version of AASE 124 Related Pary Disclosures. That Minister is the Premier and Minister for the Ars.

The fallowing details for non-ministerial KMP include those posilions that had authority and responsibility for planning, directing and

conlralling the activities of the department during 2016-17 and 2015-16. Further information on these positions can be found in the body

of the Annual Report.
Position Responsibllities e
Director-General The Direclor-General leads the efficient, effective and economic adminisiration of the depariment.
Deputy Directar-Genaral, The Deputy Director-General, Policy leads policy advice and facilitates the development of
Palicy evidence-based policy advice and coordination for the Premier and Cabinet to drive change across
governmaent. The position also provides detfailed briefings to the Premier an palicy, fram design
and development through te coordination and implementation.
Daputy Direclor-General, The Dexpudy Direclor-General, Corporate and Govemment Services is responsible far the daily

Comorate and Government
Senices

operations of the depariment, and leads the operaling strategy for the departiment to enable robust
governance struciures and effactive and responsive corporate senvice delivery, The position also
provides key advice lo the Director-General and to the Premier an complex constitutional, legal,
executive govemment and administration matters.

Deputy Director-General,
Sirategy and Engagemeani

The Deputy Director-Ganeral, Straleqgy and Engagement leads, directs and coordinales policy at a
stralegic level, supplies executive management support to the Director-General in developing and
coordinating stralegic policy across government, and is responsible for supporting
Intergovernmental relations between the Commanwealih and the State.

Strategy and Engagement Division also leads whole of government sponsaorships and
communication activities, as well as manages and coordinates events including State cccasions,
official visils and funclions.

Deputy Direclor-General, Ans
Queensland

The Deputy Direclor-General, Aris Queensland is responsible for the efficient, effective and
economic administration of Arts Queensland.

Queensland Parliamentary
Counsel

The Queensland Parliamentary Coungel leads the efficient, effective and economic administration
of the Cffice of the Queensland Parliamentary Counsel.

Cabkinel Secretany

The Cabinet Secretary provides Cabinel support for the Premier and Cabinel and Cabinet-ralated
activilies across government. The position also coordinates the operation of Cabinet and its relaled
processes, including administration of all Cabinet information, custodianship of the Cabinet record
fram currant and previous govemments and direct logistical suppaort for Cabinet and Community
Cabinel mestings.

Senior Executive Directar,
Offica of the Director-Genaral

The Senior Executive Director manages the Office of the Director-Genaral.

Former Positions®

Responsibilities

General Manager, Corporate
Senvices (26 Feb 18)*

The General Manager, Carporate Senvices is responsible for delivering canternporary, fit for
purpose, high quality, value for money corporate sendces to the depariment.

Social Policy (18 Jan 18)*

General Manager, Tha General Manager, Government Services is responsible for delivering high quality advice,

Gowernmeant Services (29 Feb | services and policy aptions 1o the Premier and the department in relation to constitutional and legal

18)" mallers and minislerial services. Government Services also coordinated the Anzac Centenany
Coaordination Unit.

Senior Execulive Direclor, The Senior Executive Director, Social Policy provides strategic leadership, direction, and co-

ardinaticn en soclal policy issues and provided execulive management suppor lo the Direclor-
General in developing and coordinaling strategic social policy across govemment,

Senior Execulive Director,
Economic Palicy (18 Jan 16)*

The Senior Executlive Director, Economic Policy provides strategic leadership, direction, and co-
ordination on economic policy issues and provided executive management support to the Director-
General in developing and coordinating sirategic economic palicy across government.

*Pasitions did not form part of the Corporate Governance Group after the dafe stated in the table. Accerdingly no remuneration beyond
this date has been incuded in Note F2-4: Nan-Ministerial KMP Performance Remuneration Expense,
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F2-2: Related Party Transactions

Transactions with peoplelentities related to KMP

Given the breadth of Government activities, related parties may transact with the government sector in the same capacity 83 ordinary
citizens, These transactions have not been separately disclosed in this note.

Transactions with related parties of the entity have occurred within normal customer or supplier relationships on terms and conditions no
mare favourable than those which it is reazsonable to expect the entity would have entered into on an arm's-langth basis. Mo KMP
related party transactions were entered into during the financial year,

Transactions with ether Queensland Government-controlled entities

The entity transacts with other Queensland Government controlled entities consistent with nomal day-to-day business operations
provided under narmal terms and conditions, Where transactions with other Queensland Government contralled anfities are considered
individually significant or material, these have been disclosed as relaled party transactions in the relevant notes as follows:

Note A1-2: User Charges and Feas

Mole A1-3: Grants and Other Contributlons
Note A2-1: Employee Expenses

MNale A2-2: Supplies and Services

MWaole A2-3 Grants and Subsidies

Mate A2-4: Other Expenses

Nole B2: Receivables and Loans Receivable
Mote BE: Interest-Bearing Liabllitles

F2-3: KMP Remuneration Policles

Ministerial remuneration entitlements are outlined in the Legislative Assembly of Queensland's Members® Remuneralion Handbook. The
department does not bear any cost of remuneration of Ministers. The majority of Ministerial entitlements are paid by the Legislative
Assembly, with the remaining enliliemeants baing provided by Ministerial Services within the Depariment of the Premier and Cabinet. As
all Ministers are reported as KMP of the Queensland Government, aggregate remuneration expenses for all Ministers is disclosed in the
Queenaland General Govemment and VWhole of Government Consolidated Financial Statements as from 2016-17, which are published
as part of Queensland Treasury’s Report on State Finances,

Remuneration for the department's other KMP ig set by the Queensland Public Serdce Commission as provided under the Public
Service Act 2008, Individual remuneration and other terms of employment (incduding mator vehicle entillements and performance
paymenis if applicable) are specified in employmeant cantracts. Remuneration expenses for KMP comgrise the following components:

1. Shorl tlerm employes expenses which Include:

&  salaries, allowances and leave entitliements eamed and expensed for the entire year, or for that par of the year during which
the employee occupied a KMP position; and

* non-monetary benefits, consisting of provision of a carpark together with fringe banefits tax applicable to the benefit.
2. Long tesm amployes expeanses include amounts expensed in respect of long senvice leave entitlements eared.
3. Post-employment expenses include amounts expensed in respect of employer suparannuation obligations.

4, Termination banafits are not included within individual contracts of employment. Contracts of employment provide only for notice
periods or payment in lieu of notice on termination, regardless of the reason for lermination.

There were nil performance payments in 2016-17 (nil in 2015-16).
The remuneration packages for the Director-General and other KMP do not provide for any performance or bonus payments.

F2-4: Non-Ministerial KMP Parformance Remunearation Expenss

The following disclosures focus on the net expenses incumed by the department that are attributable to non-Ministerial KMP during the
respective reporting periods, Therefore, the amounts disclesed reflect expenses recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Incame,



sze't | 0gl vz | 6r - | zes'z 915102 T e
8157 652 v 1 | Wiz L1-9102 (AT
(44 ] - L z " | 911 91-6L02 {91 uver g1 o) (¥53S) AdI0d DjwoUIT JoRAN] ANINDEXT JOURS
LT - il > - ¥l 15102 (91 ver g1 04) (rS3S) follod 121008 I0j0aN0 SNINDSXT J0IUAS
L1 = ¥l z = QzlL 915102 (91 994 62 21) (£33} saapes Wwawwanos sbeuep |emues
g0t gZL aL £ = -4 91-5102 {51 984 9z 01) (£535) seapuag ajeodsng ebeuey |essuan
*SOJEP pud aansadse By waody Jiny Gujog pesead mojag suoisod
€2 - Z - M - (4 91-510F (§1 By L 01) (£S3S) 1RIAUSCFI01I2UI] AU J0 SO0 J0I29UI0 BAINDEXT ML
£hL - ol z | - | Lob 19102 (9L 290 Z1 Wold) (ZS35) (RIBUSS-1012UK] ) JO SO0 I0138NI0 BAINDEXT I0IUDS
0.2 - ¥z ¥ | - e g1-5107
— (535 Aejuses Puge
L4 - % ¥ = e 210102 2 w
79z i 0z |z E | £62 1-510Z (9} uer g0 o1) (032} 195uno) Aejuaweley pugsuaany
&9k - 3l | £ E D 915102
: T | UBr 20 woud) (0F0) 19sunod) ARJUSWELEY PUBSUBEND
g 3 ae 9 |- T L1910 o 2
e : |- 1 15102
H = : L 2 (#333) puesusanyD sy ‘(RIBUaS-I0pRN0 Andag
g9z = 92 g - s 219102
b = ¥ ! - 9E aL-gL0z (g1 Bny g1 ol) (030) wawabebug pue ABaje)g ‘emusgriopang Andsg
gz 6L ¥ - g1z 91-510Z
- (g1 Ao 0 0 51 By L1 woed) (r533) wewabebug pue ABajens ‘esuag-iopang fnd
gLk - | 8 z - #0L L1-9102 3 s s
zZL Zl z - 201 L1-9102 (L} wer g7 wor4) (F533) wawebebuz pue Abaieng ‘Risusg-opang fAndag
0z | €2 £ - 2Ll gL-gL0z (9l ver 5z 91) (¥S35) seopuas WawiUanos pue sjeodio] ‘erRuag-opang fndag
BZL le - gL L1
- g SEALoS (91 ver Lz woud) ($53S5) S20MaS JUSLLBAGE) puk #Esodio]) ‘[ErRuagropang Andsg
[1]:74 2 g - 852 L1-9102
[E]8 zL £ - ¥l L5102
(gL uer gl woud) (032) Adjjod ‘lereusg-iopang fAndag
¥SC | ¥E ] ] ELE 219102 s il
8EL | Lt Zi - B 91-§102
. o= o) | T TTE T B TR Ty
ogL | 8L | 2 3 ovg L1-9102 .
000.8 ooos | ooos | ooos rﬁ..__ws 0008
| ! . -uoN fiejauop Jeap
L | - [e12uEu 4 {uoneaysse|n) uopisod
[e3oL gUTTET R _, i1s0d Buoy unaj poysg
sasuadxg safopdus =

LL0Z 2unp g pepua Jeak ayj Joy
Sjuswgelg [elouBuly SY) 0} S9ION
19ulges pue Jajwald ay) jo uswuedag

81

Department of the Premier and Cabinet Annual Report 2016-17



82

Department of the Premier and Cabinet
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

F3 Basis of Financial Statement Preparation

F3-1: General Information

The Department of the Premier and Cabinet is a Queensland Governmenl Department established under the Public Sarvice Act 2008.
The department is controlled by the State of Queensland which is the ultimate parent, The head office and principal place of business of
the department is 1 William Street, Brisbane QLD 4000. These finandal statements cover the Dapartrant of the Premier and Cabinet
and are authorised for issue by the Director-General and the Chief Finance Officer (Acting) at the date of signing the Management
Certificate. For informatian in relation o the deparment's financial report please call (07) 3003 9218, email
premiers.master@pramiers.qld.gav.au or visit the departmental intermet site www, premiers.gld.gov.au,

F3-2: Compliance with the Prescribed Requiremants

The Department of the Premier and Cabinel has prepared these financial statements:

In compliance with seclion 42 of the Financial and Performance Management Standard 2009,
In accordance with Australian Accounting 3tandards and Interpretations applicable to not-for-profit entities requirements,

In accordance with the minimum reparting requirements mentioned in the Financial Reporting Requirements for Queensland
Govemment agencies for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2016.
&  On an accrual basis.

F3-=3: Presentation

Amounts included in the financial stalements are in Australian dollars and rounded o the nearest $1,000 or, where that amount is less
than $500 to zero. Comparative information reflecis the audiled 2015-15 financial stalements. Assels are classified as ‘cufrent’ where
{heir camying amount is expected to be realised within 12 manths after the reparting date. Liabilities are classified as ‘curent’ whan they
are due to be setiled wilhin 12 months afier the reporting data, o the departmant does not have an unconditional right to defer
seftlement to beyond 12 maonths after the reparting date, All ather assets and labliities are classified as ‘non-cument’.

F3-4: Taxation

The department is a State body as defined under the income Tax Assessment Act 1938 and is exempt from Commornswealth taxation
with the exceplion of Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT) and Goods and Services Tax (GST). FBT and GST are the only taxes accounted for by
the department. Any GST credits receivable from, or GST payable to the ATO, are recognised in note B2.

F3-5. The Reporting Entity

The parent entity financial statements congist of the Depariment of the Premier and Cabinet, Controlled and associated enlities are as
autlined below.

Cantralad Enlitas:

&  Screen Queensland Py Lid (S0Q) is a company, incorporated in Ihe State of Queensland, limited by sharas held beneficially by the
State of Queensland. lts principal activities during the course of the year were the facilitation of the development, promotion and
enhancement of the film production indusiry, and film cullure and presentation of film and film-related events in Queensland. The
share capital of SQ consists of one fully paid share to the value of $10 and is held by the departmeant on behall of the State of
Queensland.

&  The Aboriginal Centre for the Perfarming Arls Pty Ltd (ACPA) is a registered training company that delivers accredited training to
indigenous and nan-indigenous persens in various performing arts courses. The share capital of ACPA consists of two (2) ordinary
shares of 51 each, fully paid, and held by the depariment on behalf of the State of Queensland,

¢ Queensland Music Festival Pty Lid (QMF) was established and incorporated in the State of Queensland as a non-profit company to
produce and promote a biennial Queensland festival of music which achieves both international excellence and accessibility for
Queenslanders from all walks of life. The share capital of QMF consists of two (2) ordinary shares of §1 each, fully paid, and are
held by the depament on bahalf of the State of Quasnsaland.

Associated Enlities.

& Major Brisbane Festivals Ply Ltd (MBF) incorporating Brisbane Festival is jointly owned by the State of Queensland and Brisbane
City Council and aims to position Brisbane as a key festival destination. The depariment on behalfl of Ihe State of Queensland, and
the Brishane City Council each hold 50% of the shares of the MBF. It has been determined that the depariment does nat have
control over the financial or operating policies throwgh voting rights or board membership of the entity. However, due to funding
arrangements for the enfity, the depariment has significant influence. The share capital of MBF consists of two (2) ordinary shares
of $1 each, fully paid.
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Consolidated Economic Entity financial slatements include S0 only. All other entities are considered immaterial and have not baen
consolidated or recegnised under equity accounting as they would not materially affect the reported financial position and revenue and
expenses of the Economic Entity.

Each contralled and associaled entity is a reparing entity in its own rght and the audited financial statements are includad in thalr
respective annual reports. A summary of the latest audited financial transactions and balances for conirolled and associated enliies are
shown below in Figure 1.

Figura 1: Audited Financial Transactions and Balances

sQ amF ACPA MEF

30 Jun 2017 31 Dec 2016 30 Jun 2016 31 Dec 2018

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Audited Audited Audited Audited

Revenue 21,872 4,050 1,588 16,442
Expenses 18,176 2,958 1,837 16,426
Net Surplus/(Deficit) 3,696 1,092 {249) 16
Assels 26,241 1,659 905 2,478
Liabilities 10,888 284 249 1,367
Net Assets 15,353 1,375 656 1,11

S0 and ACPA are audiled by (he Auditor-General of Queensland, QMF is audited by Infegrated Audit Service Pty Ltd and MBF I
audited by BDO Audit Pty Ltd, QMF and MBF are exempt from audit by the Auditor-General of Queensland under section 304 of the
Auvditor-Genaral Act 2009, QMF has changed year end from 30 Seplember to 31 Decambaar, therefora Is reparting 15 months o 31
December 2016,

F3-8: Accounting Estimates and Judgements

Reference should be made to the respective notes for more information on critical judgements, estimates and assumplions about the
estimation of uncertainty and the potential this could have to materially impact on the carrying amount of the departmants assets and
liabdlities in the next reporting period. These are as follows:

Mote B3-2: Intangible Assets. Amortization expense and impairment
Mole Ba-4; Property, plant and equipment. Measurement using fair value
Mote B4-5: Property, plant and equipment. Depreciation expense and impairmeant

The value of goods and services received free or below fair value have been reflected in the depariment’s financial results If the value of
the goods and 2envices can be reliably determined and the goods and senvices would have been purchased if not donated.

F3-7: First Year Application of New Accounting Standards or Change in Accounting Policy

Changes in Accounting Poliey

The department did not voluntarily change any of its accounting policies during 2016-17.
Accounting Standards Early Adopted for 2016-17

Mo Australian Accounting Standards have been early adopted for the 2016-17 year.
Accounting Standards Applied for the First Time

The only Australian Accounting Standard that became effactive for the first limea in 2016-17, and materally impacted on this iinancial

report, is AASE 124 Related Party Disclosures, This slandard requires note disclosures aboul KMP remuneralion expenses and other
related party transactions, and docs not impact on financial statement line items. Az Queensland Treasury already required disclosure
of KMP remuneration expenses, there was minimal impact for the department’s disclosures compared to 2015-16 (refer to Mote F2-4).
Material related party transactions for 2016-17 are disclosed in Note F2. Mo comparative information is required in respect af 201 5-16.

F3-8: Future Impact of Accounting Standards Not Yet Effective

Al the date of authorisation of the financial report, the expected impacts of new or amended Australian Accounting Standards issued but
with future commencement dates are set aut below. All other Australian accounting standards and interpretations with fulure
commencement dates are either not applicable lo the depariment's activilles, or have no material Impact on the deparimeni.

AASE 2016-2 Amendments to Ausiralian Accounfing Standards - Disclosure Initiative: Amendments fo AASBE 107

Thiz standard will require additional financial Eability disclosure, by way of a reconciliation in the notes to the Statement of Cash Flows,
o enable the reader to evaluate changes in labilities arising from financing activities, encompassing cash flow and non-cash flow
changes between the opening and closing balance of the relevant Babilities. This incoming standard will be applicable to departmeantal

Department of the Premier and Cabinet Annual Report 2016-17

83



84

Department of the Premier and Cahinet
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

bormowings with QTC as oullined in Nole B& and will first apply 1o the departmeant's financial statements for 2017-18 and is not expected
to have a material impact.

AASE 1058 Income of Nat-for-Profit Entities and AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The deparment has commanced analysing the new revenue recognition requirements under these standards and is vel 1o form
conclusions about significant impacis. Potential future impacts identifiable at the date of this report are as follows:

& grants presently recognised as revenue upfront may be eligible to be recognised as revenue progressively as the associated
performance obligations are satisfied, but only if the associated performance obligations are enforceable and sufficiently specific.

&  grams that are not enforceable andfor not sufficiently specific will not qualify far defemal, and continue to be recognised as revenue
as soon &s they are controlled, The department receives several grants for which there are no sufficiently specific performance
obligations, sa these grants will continue to be recognised as revenue upfront.

&  depending on the respective contractual terms, the new requiremeants may potentially result in a change to the timing of revenue
fram sales of the department’s goods and services such thal some revenue may need to be deferred to a later reparting period to
the extent that the department has received cash but has not met its associated obligations (such amounts would be reported as a
liakility in the meantime). The depariment is yet to complele its analysis of exisling amangements for sale of its goods and services,
hut at this stage does not expect a significant impact on its present accounting practices.

¢ arange of new disclosures will also be required by the new standards in respect of the depariment's revenua.
This iIncoming standard will first apply 1o the department's financial stalements for 2019-20.

AASB 9 Financial Instrumants and AASE 2014-T Amendments fo Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASE 9
(December 2014)

The main impacts of these sfandards on the depariment are that they will change the requirements for the classification, measurement,
impaimnent and disclosures associated with the depariment's financial assets. AASE 9will introduce different criteria for whether
financial assels can be measured al amortized cost or fair value. The main impact for the depariment will be on the measurement of
loans recehvable.

The department has commenced reviewing the measurement of its financial assels against the new AASH 3 classificalion and
measurement requirements. However, as the classification of financial assels at the date of initial application of AASE 9 will depend on
the facts and crcumstances existing at that date, the deparmend's conclusions will not be confirmed until cleser to thal time. At this
stage, and assuming no change in the types of ransactions the department entars inlo, all of the department’s financial assels are
expected to be measured at fair value. In the case of the departmeant's cumment receivables, as thay are short-term in natune, the canmying
amount is expactad to be a reagonable approximation of fair value. Changes in the fair value of those assets will be reflected in the
department's operating result. These Standards will become effective from reporting perlods beginning on or afler 1 January 2018,

AASB 18 Leases

When applied, the standard supersedes AASE 117 Leases, AASE Interpretation 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Leasa, AASE Interpratation 115 Oparating Leases — Incentives and AASE Interpretation 127 Evalualivg the Substance af Transactions
Invalving the Legal Form of a Lease.

Impact for Lessees
Unlike AASBE 117 Leases, AASBE 16 inlroduces a single lease accounting model for lessees. Lessees will be required fo recognise a

right-of-use assel (representing rights to use the underlying leased asset) and a liability (representing the cbiligation to make lease
payments) for all leases with a term of more than 12 monihs, unless the underlying assets are of low value.

In effect, the majority of operating leazes (as defined by the curment AASB 117) will be reported on the statement of financial position
under AASB 16. There will be a significant increase in assels and liabilities relating to property leases at 1 William Sireet, Brisbane and
111 George Streef, Brisbane.

The right-af-use aszel will be initially recognised atl cost, consisting of the initial amouwnt of the associated lease liability, plus any lease
payments made to the lessor at or before the effective date, less any lease incentive received, the initial estimate of restoration costs
and any initial direct costs incumed by tha lessee. The right-of-use asset will give rise o a depreciation expense.

Tha lease liability will bo infiafly recognised at an amount equal o the present value of the lease payments during the lease term that
are nol yet paid. Current operating lease rental payments will no longer be expensed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, They
will be apportioned between a reduction in the recognised lease liability and the implicit finance charge (the effective rate of interest) in
the lease. The finance cost will also be recognised as an expense.

AASE 16 allows a ‘cumulative approach’ rather than full retrospective application to recognising existing operating leases. If a lesses
chooses to apply the ‘cumulative approach’, it does not need to restate comparative information. Instead, the cumulative effect of
applying the standard is recognised as an adjustment 1o the opaning balanca of accurnulated surplus (or other companent of aquity, as
appropriate) ai the date of initial application. The Department will await further guidance from Queensland Treasury on the transitional
aceounting method to ba applied.

The department has not yet quantified the impact on the Statement of Comprehensive Income or the Statemnent of Financial Position of
applying AASE 16 to its current operaling leases, induding the extent of additional disclosura required. This standard will first apply to
the depariment from its financial statements for 2019-20.



Department of the Premier and Cabinet
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Certificate of the Department of the Premier and Cabinet

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared pursuant to section 62(1) of the Financial Accountability Act 2009 (the
Acty, section 42 of the Financial and Performance Managemen! Standard 2009 and other prescribed requirements. In accordance with
section 62{1)(b} of Ihe Act we cerdify thal in our opinlon:

a) he prescribed reguirements for establishing and keeping the accounts have been complied with in all material respects;

bj the financial statements have been drawn up fo present a trua and fair view, in accardance with preseribed accounting standards, of
the fransactions af the Depariment of the Premier and Cabinet for the financial year ended 30 June 2017 and of the financial position of
the depariment al the end of thal year; and

c} these asserlions are based on an appropriate system of intermal cantrals and risk management processas being effective, in all
material respects, with respect to financial reporting throughaut the reporting period,

o

Dave Stewart Phillip Fogarty CPA

Director-Genagal Chiaf Finance Officer (Acting)
/Lﬁ:sl 2017 2 g August 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Accountable Officer of the Department of the Premier and Cabinet

Report on the audit of the financial report
Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial report of the Department of the Premier and Cabinet (the

parent) and its controlled entities (the group). The financial report comprises the statements of

financial position and statements of assets and liabilities by major departimental services and shared

service providers as at 30 June 2017, the statements of comprehensive income, statements of

changes in equity, statements of cash flows and statements of comprehensive income by major

departmental services and shared service providers for the year then ended, notes to the financial

statements including summaries of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,

and the certificates provided by the Director-General and Chief Finance Officer (Acting).

In my opinion, the financial report:

a)  gives atrue and fair view of the parent's and group's financial position as at 30 June 2017, and
their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended

b) complies with the Financial Accountability Act 20089, the Financial and Performance
Management Standard 2009 and Australian Accounting Standards.

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing Standards,
which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Audifor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of my
report. '

| am independent of the parent and group in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in Australia. | have also
fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code and the Auditor-General of
Queensland Audifing Standards,

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, were of most significance in
my audit of the financial report for the current period. | addressed these matters in the context of my
audit of the financial report as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon, and | do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.



Valuation of heritage and cultural assets (§316 million) and depreciation expense ($25.0

million)
Refer to note B4 in the financial report.

Key audit matter

The Department of the Premier and
Cabinet's heritage and cultural assets
include material building assets
measured at fair value at balance date.
The Department performed a
comprehensive revaluation of all heritage
and cultural building assets.

These buildings are restricted for use due
to heritage listing.

The fair value of the buildings was
determined using the current replacement
cost method which comprises:

o (ross replacement cost, less

s Accumulated depreciation

The Department derived the gross
replacement cost of these buildings at

balance date using unit prices that
required significant judgements for:

s identifying the components of
buildings with separately identifiable
replacement costs (known as unit
rate categories)

+ developing a unit rate for each of
these components, including:

o estimating the current cost for a
modern substitute (including
locality factors and oncosts),
expressed as a rate per unit (e.g.
$isquare metre)

o identifying whether the existing
building contains obsolescence or
less utility compared to the
modern substitute, and if so
estimating the adjustment to the
unit rate required to reflect this
difference.

The measurement of accumulated
depreciation involved significant
judgements for forecasting the remaining
useful lives of assets.

The significant judgements required for
gross replacement cost and useful lives
are also significant for calculating annual
depreciation expense.

Howmy audit addressed the key audit matier

My pmcures ncud&d. but were not limited to:

Assessing the adequacy of management’s review
of the valuation process.

Assessing the appropriateness of the building
components used for measuring gross
replacement cost with reference to the
Department’s asset management plans, the unit
costs of its recent projects, and common industry
practices.

For unit rates:

o Assessing the competence, capability and
objectivity of the experts used by the entity to
develop the models.

o Obtaining an understanding of the
methodology used, and assessing its
appropriateness with reference to common
industry practices.

o On asample basis, evaluating the relevance,
completeness and accuracy of source data
used to derive the unit rate of the:

=  modern substitute (including locality
factors and oncosts)

= adjustment for excess quality,
obsolescence or restrictions on use.

Evaluating useful life estimates for reasonableness

by:

o Reviewing management’s annual assessment
of useful lives.

o At an agaregated level, reviewing for
consistency between renewal budgets and the
gross replacement cost of assets due to
expire during the renewal budget period.

o Reviewing that no component still in use has
reached or exceeded its useful life.

o Reviewing formal asset management plans,
and enquiring of management about whether
these plans remain current.

Where changes in useful lives were identified,
evaluating whether the effective dates of the
changes applied for depreciation expense were
supported by appropriate evidence.

Responsibilities of the accountable officer for the financial report

The accountable officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and
fair view in accordance with the Financial Accountability Act 2009, the Financial and Performance
Management Standard 2009 and Australian Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as the
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accountable officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The accountable officer is also responsible for assessing the parent's and group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless it is intended to abolish the parent or group or to otherwise cease
operations.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the parent's and group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the accountable officer.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the accountable officer's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the parent's or group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to
draw altention in my auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to medify my opinion. | base my conclusions on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of my auditor's report. However, fulure events or conditions may cause
the parent or group to cease to continue as a going concern.

“ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the
disclosuras, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the group to express an opinion on the financial report. | am
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the group. | remain
solely responsible for my audit opinion.

| communicate with the accountable officer regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that | identify during my audit.



From the matters communicated with the accountable officer, | determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial report of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In accordance with s.40 of the Auditor-General Act 2009, for the year ended 30 June 2017:
a) |received all the information and explanations | required.

b) In my opinion, the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping of
accounts were complied with in all material respects.

e gt -,{
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Brendan Worrall Queensland Audit Office
Auditor-General Brishane
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